
A G E N D A
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

D. OLD BUSINESS

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­0038­2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

2. C­0025­2018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

F. ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA ITEM NO. C.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 6/20/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Paul D. Holt, III, Secretary

SUBJECT: May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes Minutes

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 6/13/2018 ­ 12:03 PM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/14/2018 ­ 8:35 AM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 6/14/2018 ­ 8:37 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/14/2018 ­ 8:39 AM



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
May 23, 2018
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner

C. MINUTES

1. April 18, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Danny Schmidt made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 3­0­1 with Mr. Jack Haldeman abstaining, as he was
not present at the meeting.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­0039­2018. Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Ms. Ellen Cook presented the Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment to the
Development Review Committee. 

Mr. Timothy Trant, Kaufman and Canoles, PC, stated that he was working with the
Stonehouse Home Owners Association (HOA) to meet with residents. He stated that a
meeting with the residents would occur once the elections for the HOA were finished. He
stated that approximately 4,500 acres were currently undeveloped. He stated that access
through Sycamore Landing Road was not a likely route. He stated that there was an additional
entrance to Stonehouse through Six Mount Zion. He stated that a town square was added to
the Master Plan. He stated that the town square would provide a recreation area and green

Page 1 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
May 23, 2018
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner

C. MINUTES

1. April 18, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Danny Schmidt made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 3­0­1 with Mr. Jack Haldeman abstaining, as he was
not present at the meeting.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­0039­2018. Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Ms. Ellen Cook presented the Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment to the
Development Review Committee. 

Mr. Timothy Trant, Kaufman and Canoles, PC, stated that he was working with the
Stonehouse Home Owners Association (HOA) to meet with residents. He stated that a
meeting with the residents would occur once the elections for the HOA were finished. He
stated that approximately 4,500 acres were currently undeveloped. He stated that access
through Sycamore Landing Road was not a likely route. He stated that there was an additional
entrance to Stonehouse through Six Mount Zion. He stated that a town square was added to
the Master Plan. He stated that the town square would provide a recreation area and green
space. He stated that there was a current need for a middle school. He stated that outdoor
recreation and trails would be added to the proposal.

Mr. Mike Etchemendy stated that the density in Tracts two and three would remain the same. 

Mr. Rich Krapf stated that the 2007 Master Plan had extensive proffers. He asked if proffers
would be amended.

Mr. Trant stated that the County Attorney’s Office would allow amended proffers for portions
of the Master Plan. He stated that traffic improvements would require a new traffic study. 

Mr. Krapf stated that he would like a matrix showing the existing and the new proffers
presented in an illustrative way. 

Mr. Trant stated that he would provide a document at the rezoning stage.

Mr. Danny Schmidt stated that he was in favor of the recreation areas. He asked if there
would be an access easement through the preservation areas. 

Mr. Trant stated that the Planned Unit Development required public water and sewer to be
available to the lots. He stated that the preservation areas would have a conservation easement
on the property. He stated that one possible outcome would be to have smaller cluster
properties with a large recreation area for the homeowners or alternatively, the property could
be subdivided as large estate lots.  

Mr. Frank Polster asked for more information on the conservation easement.

Mr. Trant stated that the conservation easement would limit the amount of development that
would occur. 

Mr. Polster stated that he favored the cluster development and leaving a larger recreation area.
He stated that there was potential for relief in the Ware Creek Watershed regarding sediment
buildup. Mr. Polster asked if the kayak path can be relocated. 

Mr. Trant stated that he can work through the options at the next stage to provide more
details. 

Mr. Polster asked for more details about the school site.

Mr. Trant stated that the original school site had about 113 developable acres. He stated that
the new site will have 35 developable acres. He stated that there are possibilities of public uses
near the school site. 

Mr. Polster stated that there may not be enough developable area with the Resource
Protection Area. He asked where the additional amenities would be located that were in the
original proffers. 

Mr. Trant stated that fewer homes would be built resulting in less revenue to support the
amenities in the original proffers. 

Mr. Polster asked if affordable housing would be available. 

Mr. Trant stated that the affordable housing would still be available per the original proffers.

Mr. Polster asked about the density around the recreation areas in the town center. 

Page 2 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
May 23, 2018
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner

C. MINUTES

1. April 18, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Danny Schmidt made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 3­0­1 with Mr. Jack Haldeman abstaining, as he was
not present at the meeting.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­0039­2018. Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Ms. Ellen Cook presented the Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment to the
Development Review Committee. 

Mr. Timothy Trant, Kaufman and Canoles, PC, stated that he was working with the
Stonehouse Home Owners Association (HOA) to meet with residents. He stated that a
meeting with the residents would occur once the elections for the HOA were finished. He
stated that approximately 4,500 acres were currently undeveloped. He stated that access
through Sycamore Landing Road was not a likely route. He stated that there was an additional
entrance to Stonehouse through Six Mount Zion. He stated that a town square was added to
the Master Plan. He stated that the town square would provide a recreation area and green
space. He stated that there was a current need for a middle school. He stated that outdoor
recreation and trails would be added to the proposal.

Mr. Mike Etchemendy stated that the density in Tracts two and three would remain the same. 

Mr. Rich Krapf stated that the 2007 Master Plan had extensive proffers. He asked if proffers
would be amended.

Mr. Trant stated that the County Attorney’s Office would allow amended proffers for portions
of the Master Plan. He stated that traffic improvements would require a new traffic study. 

Mr. Krapf stated that he would like a matrix showing the existing and the new proffers
presented in an illustrative way. 

Mr. Trant stated that he would provide a document at the rezoning stage.

Mr. Danny Schmidt stated that he was in favor of the recreation areas. He asked if there
would be an access easement through the preservation areas. 

Mr. Trant stated that the Planned Unit Development required public water and sewer to be
available to the lots. He stated that the preservation areas would have a conservation easement
on the property. He stated that one possible outcome would be to have smaller cluster
properties with a large recreation area for the homeowners or alternatively, the property could
be subdivided as large estate lots.  

Mr. Frank Polster asked for more information on the conservation easement.

Mr. Trant stated that the conservation easement would limit the amount of development that
would occur. 

Mr. Polster stated that he favored the cluster development and leaving a larger recreation area.
He stated that there was potential for relief in the Ware Creek Watershed regarding sediment
buildup. Mr. Polster asked if the kayak path can be relocated. 

Mr. Trant stated that he can work through the options at the next stage to provide more
details. 

Mr. Polster asked for more details about the school site.

Mr. Trant stated that the original school site had about 113 developable acres. He stated that
the new site will have 35 developable acres. He stated that there are possibilities of public uses
near the school site. 

Mr. Polster stated that there may not be enough developable area with the Resource
Protection Area. He asked where the additional amenities would be located that were in the
original proffers. 

Mr. Trant stated that fewer homes would be built resulting in less revenue to support the
amenities in the original proffers. 

Mr. Polster asked if affordable housing would be available. 

Mr. Trant stated that the affordable housing would still be available per the original proffers.

Mr. Polster asked about the density around the recreation areas in the town center. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that there was a proposal for 100 lots. 

Mr. Polster stated that he was reminded of New Town while looking at the proposal. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that Land Bay five will include both single­family and townhomes.

Mr. Trant stated that Tract nine would have a recreational vehicle storage lot.

Mr. Schmidt asked if there were any plans for shoreline stabilization.

Mr. Trant stated that the applicant would not be taking on the stabilization of the shore. He
stated that if the lot was under a private ownership, they would have the ability to use the
shoreline and make their own choices about stabilization.

Mr. Etchemendy stated that removing over 1,200 homes was a public benefit.

Mr. Polster agreed.

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any citizens in the room that would like to make a comment.

Mr. Bob Spencer, 9123 Three Bushel Drive, asked that the applicant meet with the residents
regarding the potential development. He asked how many units would be located near the
Stonehouse entrance near Old Stage Road. 

Mr. Trant stated that there was not a proposal to change the land use of Land Bay five. He
stated that he had made a request with the Stonehouse Board regarding meeting with the
residents.

Ms. Caroline Lott, 9804 Loblolly Court, asked if the public amenities in the town square
would be open to the public.

Mr. Trant confirmed that the square would be open to the public.

Ms. Lott asked who would be responsible for the maintenance costs. 

Mr. Trant stated that either the County or an easement would be dedicated to a private
association. 

Ms. Lott asked if there would be an additional pool.

Mr. Trant stated that he did not have that information this early in the planning stage. 

Mr. Krapf stated that specific questions about the project might best be handled in a
community meeting. 

Mr. Polster asked who would be responsible for the visitor center previously mentioned by
Mr. Trant.

Mr. Trant stated that the Commercial Owners Association or the Stonehouse Owners
Foundation. 

Ms. Lott asked who would be responsible for the tennis courts. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that the courts could be dedicated to the County and open to the

Page 3 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
May 23, 2018
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner

C. MINUTES

1. April 18, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Danny Schmidt made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 3­0­1 with Mr. Jack Haldeman abstaining, as he was
not present at the meeting.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C­0039­2018. Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Ms. Ellen Cook presented the Stonehouse 2018 Proposed Master Plan Amendment to the
Development Review Committee. 

Mr. Timothy Trant, Kaufman and Canoles, PC, stated that he was working with the
Stonehouse Home Owners Association (HOA) to meet with residents. He stated that a
meeting with the residents would occur once the elections for the HOA were finished. He
stated that approximately 4,500 acres were currently undeveloped. He stated that access
through Sycamore Landing Road was not a likely route. He stated that there was an additional
entrance to Stonehouse through Six Mount Zion. He stated that a town square was added to
the Master Plan. He stated that the town square would provide a recreation area and green
space. He stated that there was a current need for a middle school. He stated that outdoor
recreation and trails would be added to the proposal.

Mr. Mike Etchemendy stated that the density in Tracts two and three would remain the same. 

Mr. Rich Krapf stated that the 2007 Master Plan had extensive proffers. He asked if proffers
would be amended.

Mr. Trant stated that the County Attorney’s Office would allow amended proffers for portions
of the Master Plan. He stated that traffic improvements would require a new traffic study. 

Mr. Krapf stated that he would like a matrix showing the existing and the new proffers
presented in an illustrative way. 

Mr. Trant stated that he would provide a document at the rezoning stage.

Mr. Danny Schmidt stated that he was in favor of the recreation areas. He asked if there
would be an access easement through the preservation areas. 

Mr. Trant stated that the Planned Unit Development required public water and sewer to be
available to the lots. He stated that the preservation areas would have a conservation easement
on the property. He stated that one possible outcome would be to have smaller cluster
properties with a large recreation area for the homeowners or alternatively, the property could
be subdivided as large estate lots.  

Mr. Frank Polster asked for more information on the conservation easement.

Mr. Trant stated that the conservation easement would limit the amount of development that
would occur. 

Mr. Polster stated that he favored the cluster development and leaving a larger recreation area.
He stated that there was potential for relief in the Ware Creek Watershed regarding sediment
buildup. Mr. Polster asked if the kayak path can be relocated. 

Mr. Trant stated that he can work through the options at the next stage to provide more
details. 

Mr. Polster asked for more details about the school site.

Mr. Trant stated that the original school site had about 113 developable acres. He stated that
the new site will have 35 developable acres. He stated that there are possibilities of public uses
near the school site. 

Mr. Polster stated that there may not be enough developable area with the Resource
Protection Area. He asked where the additional amenities would be located that were in the
original proffers. 

Mr. Trant stated that fewer homes would be built resulting in less revenue to support the
amenities in the original proffers. 

Mr. Polster asked if affordable housing would be available. 

Mr. Trant stated that the affordable housing would still be available per the original proffers.

Mr. Polster asked about the density around the recreation areas in the town center. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that there was a proposal for 100 lots. 

Mr. Polster stated that he was reminded of New Town while looking at the proposal. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that Land Bay five will include both single­family and townhomes.

Mr. Trant stated that Tract nine would have a recreational vehicle storage lot.

Mr. Schmidt asked if there were any plans for shoreline stabilization.

Mr. Trant stated that the applicant would not be taking on the stabilization of the shore. He
stated that if the lot was under a private ownership, they would have the ability to use the
shoreline and make their own choices about stabilization.

Mr. Etchemendy stated that removing over 1,200 homes was a public benefit.

Mr. Polster agreed.

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any citizens in the room that would like to make a comment.

Mr. Bob Spencer, 9123 Three Bushel Drive, asked that the applicant meet with the residents
regarding the potential development. He asked how many units would be located near the
Stonehouse entrance near Old Stage Road. 

Mr. Trant stated that there was not a proposal to change the land use of Land Bay five. He
stated that he had made a request with the Stonehouse Board regarding meeting with the
residents.

Ms. Caroline Lott, 9804 Loblolly Court, asked if the public amenities in the town square
would be open to the public.

Mr. Trant confirmed that the square would be open to the public.

Ms. Lott asked who would be responsible for the maintenance costs. 

Mr. Trant stated that either the County or an easement would be dedicated to a private
association. 

Ms. Lott asked if there would be an additional pool.

Mr. Trant stated that he did not have that information this early in the planning stage. 

Mr. Krapf stated that specific questions about the project might best be handled in a
community meeting. 

Mr. Polster asked who would be responsible for the visitor center previously mentioned by
Mr. Trant.

Mr. Trant stated that the Commercial Owners Association or the Stonehouse Owners
Foundation. 

Ms. Lott asked who would be responsible for the tennis courts. 

Mr. Etchemendy stated that the courts could be dedicated to the County and open to the
public. 

Mr. Trant stated that multi­use fields were the most popular recreational amenity in many
communities.

Mr. Etchemendy stated that an activity center would help bring residents together. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further questions. 

Upon hearing no further questions, Mr. Krapf thanked Mr. Trant and the other representatives
for attending the meeting and presenting their proposal. 

F. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Polster made a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Krapf adjourned the meeting at 5:10 p.m.

Page 4 of 4

tleininger
Typewritten Text
Mr. Rich Krapf, Chair

tleininger
Typewritten Text
Mr. Paul Holt, Secretary

tleininger
Line

tleininger
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 6/20/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: C­0038­2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Staff Report Staff Report
Attachment No. 1 Cocnceptual Plan Exhibit
Attachment No. 2. Adopted
Resolution Exhibit

Attachment No. 3. Adopted Master
Plan Exhibit

Attachment No. 4. Shaping Our
Shores report (Executive Summary
and Page 4)

Exhibit

Attachment No. 5.Location Map Exhibit
Attachment No. 6. Pictures Exhibit

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:29 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:40 AM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:55 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:55 AM



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-0038-2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements 

Staff Report for the June 20, 2018, Development Review Committee 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application.  It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

 

Page 1 of 3 

SUMMARY FACTS 

 

Applicant: Mrs. Nancy Ellis, James City County Parks 

and Recreation 

 

Land Owner:  James City County 

 

Proposal: To build an additional boathouse and to 

relocate the RV/boat storage. Special Use 

Permit Condition No. 1 from Case No. SUP-

0014-2009, adopted by the Board of 

Supervisors on November 10, 2009, states 

that improvements to the site shall generally 

be located as shown on the Chickahominy 

Riverfront Master Plan, with only changes 

thereto that the Development Review 

Committee (DRC) determines to be generally 

consistent with the Master Plan and Shaping 

Our Shores Report. 

 

 

Location: The north side of John Tyler Highway and 

bordered by the Chickahominy River and 

Gordon Creek 

 

Tax Map/Parcel No.: 3430100002 

 

Project Acreage: +/- 140 acres 

 

Zoning:   PL, Public Lands 

 

Comprehensive Plan: Open Space or Recreation 

 

Primary Service Area: Outside 

Staff Contact: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II 

 

FACTORS FAVORABLE 

 

1. With the proposed improvements, the proposal continues to be 

compatible with surrounding zoning and development. 

 

2. The proposal is consistent with the recommendations of the 

2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

FACTORS UNFAVORABLE 

 

1. There are no unfavorable factors. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the request to add a second boathouse and to relocate the 

existing RV/Boat storage. Staff recommends that a Spill Prevention 

Plan be submitted for review and approval as part of the site plan 

approval for the RV/boat storage area. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The applicant has submitted a Conceptual Plan (Attachment No. 1) 

proposing a number of improvements such as development of a public 

launch area for paddle craft and public rental operations. Two of the 

proposed improvements are not currently shown on the adopted 

Chickahominy Riverfront Master Plan: 

 

 An additional boathouse; and 

 A storage area for RV/boats 

 

  



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-0038-2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements 

Staff Report for the June 20, 2018, Development Review Committee 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application.  It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Additional Boathouse 
 

During the development of the Shaping Our Shores Master Plan, a 

need for a permanent boathouse was identified and subsequently 

included in the Chickahominy Riverfront Master Plan. In 2010, a site 

plan for the construction of the boathouse was submitted for approval. 

During the review of the site plan it was determined that the boathouse 

could not be built in the area on the Master Plan designated as 

“kayak/canoe launch and rowing facility with boathouse” (labeled 

“H”) due to the presence of Resource Protection Areas (RPAs). The 

boathouse was built in approximately the area identified on the Master 

Plan as small RV camping area (labeled as “C1”). Staff notes that the 

second boathouse is proposed to be located next to the existing 

boathouse (refer to Attachment No. 1). 
 

According to the applicant, the existing boathouse is under an 

exclusive lease agreement with the College of William & Mary and a 

second boathouse is needed in order to accommodate the needs of the 

Williamsburg Boat Club and the community as a whole. 
 

Relocation of a Storage Area for RV/Boats 
 

According with the applicant, the RV/boat storage area, currently 

located next to the existing boathouse was already in place prior to the 

County’s acquisition of the property. However, this use is not 

identified on the Chickahominy Riverfront Master Plan. The applicant 

is seeking to relocate the RV/boat storage to a larger area south of its 

current location in order to allow for additional revenue to the park 

and to provide better services to patrons. The proposed RV/boat 

storage will be approximately 400 x 140 square feet and store up to 50 

large RV/boats. The park fronts on John Tyler Highway, designated 

as a Community Character Corridor by the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

View of the proposed storage from the public right-of-way is limited 

as the area along John Tyler Highway is heavily wooded (refer to 

Attachment No. 6). 

In the Shaping Our Shores Report, Item No. 4.3.27 of the report states 

the following (refer to Attachment No. 4): 

 

“A fenced area for seasonal boat and trailer storage was discussed 

and considered during the master planning of the park. Dedicating 

land for this type of use was determined to generally be not compatible 

with other park uses and that other more suitable sites exist within 

James City County. A storage facility of this type has several 

drawbacks such as poorly maintained boats and RVs may develop oil 

or fuel leaks directly into the soil which can go undetected indefinitely. 

In addition, the facility competes with private business within the 

county that provide storage services. If JCC were to pursue providing 

a fenced-in storage area, the most suitable area would be in the east 

side of the road leading down to the rowing facility, generally in the 

area where there is currently unorganized storage of boats and 

trailers.” 

 

However, on the executive summary of the Shaping Our Shores 

Report, there is a section titled “Plan Adoption and Board of 

Supervisors Guidance” which states: 

 

“For the Chickahominy Riverfront Park the Board supported the 

camping mix and enhanced boating services, especially amenities that 

appeal to County residents in addition to visitors. Dependable revenue 

generators such as RV camping and boat storage were encouraged 

along with activities such as primitive camping that have relatively 

low initial investment and maintenance costs.” 

 

Staff notes that if this Master Plan consistency request is approved by 

the DRC, a site plan for the additional boathouse and the RV/boat 

storage area will be required to be submitted for review and approval. 

Staff recommends that a Spill Prevention Plan to address potential 

oil/fuel leaks associated with the RV/boat storage be submitted as part 

of the site plan for review and approval. 



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-0038-2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements 

Staff Report for the June 20, 2018, Development Review Committee 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application.  It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

 

Page 3 of 3 

PLANNING AND ZONING HISTORY 

 

 The Board of Supervisors approved SUP-0014-2009 for the 

Chickahominy Riverfront on November 10, 2009. This allowed 

the development of the site as a recreational complex. 

 

 The Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution in support of the 

Shaping Our Shores Master Plan for Jamestown Beach 

Campground, Jamestown Yacht Basin and Chickahominy 

Riverfront Park, on June 9, 2009. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

 The project site is bordered by the Chickahominy River and 

Gordon Creek in the west and north and by property zoned A-1 

and designated Rural Lands to the south and east. These 

properties are currently either undeveloped or used for single-

family residential. 

 

PUBLIC IMPACTS 

 

1. Anticipated impact on public facilities and services: None 

 

2. Anticipated impact on nearby and surrounding properties: None 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff finds the proposed boathouse addition and the relocation of the 

RV/boat storage area to be generally consistent with the adopted 

Master Plan for Chickahominy Riverfront Master Plan and the Shaping 

Our Shores as it does not change the basic concept or character of the 

development. Staff acknowledges that the location of the existing and 

proposed boathouses are not exactly in the same area as shown on the 

Master Plan. However, given the location of RPAs next to the 

kayak/canoe and rowing facilities, staff finds the proposed location of 

the additional boathouse to be acceptable. Staff also acknowledges 

that the proposed location of the RV/boat storage is not shown in the 

Master Plan and that a recommendation was made in the Shaping Our 

Shores report against this type of use. However, the Shaping Our 

Shores report does say that if such facility is proposed, the most 

suitable area would be in the east side of the road leading to the rowing 

facility, and the proposed location is generally consistent with this 

description.  

 

In addition, staff notes that the Board of Supervisors provided 

guidance in support of this type of use at this park when they adopted 

the report, and that the use itself predates any Master Plan for the park 

area. Please note that based on the proposed location of these facilities 

they may overlap with an area shown for RV camping, but there are 

additional RV camping areas located east of the road which could still 

be developed into RV camping in the future. Should the DRC find 

these uses consistent with the master plan, staff recommends that a 

Spill Prevention Plan be submitted for review and approval as part of 

the site plan submittal for the RV/boat storage area. 

 

 

JR/nb 

CP38-18ChickRvrftPkImp 

 

Attachments: 

1. Conceptual Plan 

2. Adopted Resolution for SUP-0014-2009 

3. Adopted Chickahominy Riverfront Master Plan 

4. Shaping Our Shores Report (Executive Summary Regarding 

Chickahominy Riverfront Park and page 4) 

5. Location Map 

6. Pictures of Existing Vegetation along John Tyler Highway 



C;

C.

C.

a
0

0.

0

ri:.

0

z
z

G)
ID
—

(I)
a
z



3.
4

‘C)
0

‘:

cO

0

0

0I—



C

a

a

N
0

kJ”



I
0



P
roposed

B
c.t

H
ouse

and
L

aunch
A

d
d
o
n
&

h
u
s

a.
63’

X
90’

for
boat

£
to

rag
,

ockers,equipm
ent.

and
tra

n
in

g
sp

a
c

b.
2

floor
for

addftonal
storage

c,
R

est
R

oom
s

d
W

ater,Septic,
E

c
c

i
r
d

e.
E

xplore
o
ssib

iiity
of

roof
w

ater
c
o
lJe

c
ti

for
restro

o
m

s
sciar

p
a
n
e

for
&

ectrcity
f

N
ose

requested
ccorion

3O
feer

from
existing

boathouse
w

illbkeiy
be

too
close

to
exst’ng

m
aintenance

building

v
d

loop
road

w
ith

P
rm

eab
ie

P
aver

P
arking

L
ot

a.
L

ocation
of

exsU
ng

tern
porary

RV
D

ry
S

torage
b.

E
xisting

gravel
loop

road
resurfaced

w
ith

asphaltfor
partidpant

drop-off
c.

P
erm

eable
paver

parking
for

approxim
ate’y

50
cars

ci.
W

ill
require

re-Iocaton
of

existing
tern

p
o
rry

RV
storage

C
s
tIr

S
oathouse

D
.

E
istrg

P
ark

V
r
t
a
r
i
e

S
u1ding

E
T

em
porary

RV
D

ry
S

t
o
e

a.
4O

0
X
4

to
house

up
to

Large
R

V
s

F
S

ffe
r

T
rees

a.
Line

of
trees

to
obscure

storage
area

from
rte

5



P
rO

poS
ed

B
O

at
H

ouse
and

L
aunch

L
aunch

A
rea

a
A

dd
pier

o
con

n
ec

to
ex

stn
g

fcatm
g

p
e

rn
order

to
create

rv
n
g

launch
area

b.
Pier

spans
180’

east
tc

w
est,

extends
60’

into
G

ordon
C

reek
C.

Floating
pier

th
at

m
eets

A
D

A
equlrernents

for
“A

ccessible
Fishing

Piers
&

Platform
s”

4.
im

proved,
A

D
A

accessible
ram

ps
at

both
launch

entrances
e.

U
ghting

at
both

larnch
entrances

f.
Pytons

along
floating

pier
for

stability
g.

E4ectric
required

for
lights

h.
iV

ote:
the

aeriqiphotograph
from

2
O

i5
d3esn’t reflectthe

currentkyoutoffloating
piers

-L
C

oaches
L

aunch

L
C

anoe/kayak
L

aunch
a.

L
aunch

point
for

iC
C

paddie
craft

rent&
s

b
F

loatingpier
extending

to
accessible

floating
canoe/kayak

bunch
(EZ

L
aunch

“D
rive

T
hrough”

m
odel

or
sim

iar)

J
A

tced
an

t
B

ooth
a.

12’X
lS’

atten
d
an

t
booth

to
house

rjrw
atten

d
an

t
w

ith
desk

and
service

w
indow

and
storage

of
lifejackets/pa

dd
les.

b.
E

kctricfty,Internet
co

ctor.t
rq

u
c
e
d



P
roposed

B
oat

H
ouse

and
L

aunch

K.
A

cessiN
e

P
arking

a.
E

xstng
gravel

area
resurFaced

b.
1
8

X
42’

asphalt
pad

w
ith

tire
stops

c.
3

A
D

A
Parking

spaces
(one

V
an

accessible)
w

ith
5’

aisles

L.
P

d
d
lecraftStorage

a.
A

pprox.
1600

square
feet

area
for

storage
ofJCC

rental
paddlecraft

(rack
storage

system
for

approx.
24

kayaks,
12

canoes,
10

Stanö
p

padd(ebaards,
and

racks
før

storage
rental

space)

W
i. P

aved
road

to
L

aunch
A

rea.
a.

E
xisting

gravel
road

resurfaced
w

ith
asphalt



tab3J.It.,..4-r..-•-...a

-1cflsjj4
L.

-

4

%1I

t—.
‘S6L4O77’A,AiL$4Lt<jI c -_

4 Wt’i!t.

+4--*n_+

t4taz

r
-

I

-



Ii 
r' 

RESOLUTION 

CASE NO. SUP-0014-2009. CHICKAHOMINY RIVERFRONT PARK-

RV LOOP AND MASTER PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of J runes City County has adopted by Ordinance specific land uses 
that shall be subjected to a Special Use Permit (SUP) process; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Aaron Small of AES Consulting Engineers, on behalf of Jrunes City County Parks and 
Recreation, has applied for an SUP to make improvements to existing facilities at 
Chickahominy Riverfront Park and to master-plan the entire park property for community 
recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the property is located on land zoned PL, Public Land, and can be further identified as 
Jrunes City County Real Estate Tax Map/Parcel No. 3430100002; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission ofJrunes City County, following its public hearing on October 7, 
2009, recommended approval of this application by a vote of 6-1; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Jrunes City County, Virginia, finds this use to be consistent with 
the 2003 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designation for this site. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, 
after a public hearing does hereby approve the issuance of SUP No. 0014-2009 as described 
herein with the following conditions: 

1. Master Plan. This SUP shall permit a public community recreation facility and 
accessory uses thereto, including, but not limited to, tent sites, cabins, recreational 
vehicle (RV) crunping areas, special event areas, docks/piers, swimming facilities, 
playgrounds, boat launches, rowing facilities, picnic pavilions, camp store, and 
seasonal concession stands on property located at 1350 John Tyler Highway (the 
"Property"). Improvements to the site shall generally be located as shown on the 
document entitled "Figure 4-2: Master Plan-Chickahominy Riverfront Park," (the 
"Master Plan") prepared by Vanasse, Hangen, and Brustlin, Inc. (VHB) and date­
strunped October 14, 2009, with only changes thereto that the Development Review 
Committee (DRC) determines to be generally consistent with the Master Plan and 
Shaping Our Shores report. 

2. Soil Studies. Soil feasibility studies to determine appropriate areas for septic 
drainfields shall be submitted to the Virginia Department of Health for review and 
approval prior to final development plan approval for any new development on the 
Property. Redevelopment plans ("Redevelopment") for the Property shall not be 
subjected to this requirement. Redevelopment shall include the removal and 
replacement, renovation, or rehabilitation of existing buildings or facilities that does 
not increase or change the general shape or location of impervious area or number of 
tent sites or RV spaces, does not change the existing primary use of an area, and/or 



does not change existing points of access. Based on the findings of any study, if a 
proposed use needs to be relocated, a plan detailing the relocation shall be provided to 
the DRC to determine whether the plan is generally consistent with the Master Plan 
and Shaping Our Shores report. 

3. Right-of-Way Buffer. A 150-foot buffer shall be maintained along John Tyler 
Highway. That buffer shall remain undisturbed with the exception of breaks for 
roadways and pedestrian connections, utilities, walking, hiking, and biking trails, and 
other uses specifically approved by the Director of Planning and the DRC. 

4. Lighting. Any new exterior site or building lighting shall have recessed fixtures with 
no bulb, lens, or globe extending below the casing. The casing shall be opaque and 
shall completely surround the entire light fixture and light source in such a manner 
that all light will be directed downward and the light source are not visible from the 
side. Fixtures which are horizontally mounted on poles shall not exceed 15 feet in 
height. No glare defined as 0.1 foot-candle or higher shall extend outside the property 
lines. 

5. Speakers. All permanent public address speakers used on the site shall be oriented 
generally toward the interior of the property and away from exterior property lines. 

6. Archaeology. Additional archaeological studies for any area to be disturbed that is 
identified as 'eligible' for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places and/or 
'unknown (further work needed)' on pages 109-112 of the report titled "Phase I 
Cultural Resources Survey and Archaeological Inventory of the Chickahominy 
Riverfront Park, James City County, Virginia" by Geo-Marine, Inc. and dated June 
2008, shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for review and approval prior to 
the commencement of any land-disturbing activity on the property. If a Phase II study 
is undertaken, such a study shall be approved by the Director of Planning and a 
treatment plan for said sites shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Director of 
Planning for sites that are determined to be eligible for inclusion on the National 
Register of Historic Places and/or those sites that require a Phase ill study. Ifin the 
Phase ill study, a site is determined eligible for nomination to the National Register of 
Historic Places and said site is to be preserved in place, the treatment plan shall 
include nomination of the site to the National Register of Historic Places. If a Phase 
ill study is undertaken for said sites, such studies shall be approved by the Director of 
Planning prior to land disturbance within the study areas. All Phase I, Phase II, and 
Phase ill studies shall meet the Virginia Department of Historic Resources' Guidelines 
for Preparing Archaeological Resource Management Reports and the Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards and Guidelines for Archaeological Documentation, as applicable, 
and shall be conducted under the supervision of a qualified archaeologist who meets 
the qualifications set forth in the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualification 
Standards. All approved treatment plans shall be incorporated into the plan of 
development for the site and the clearing, grading, or construction activities thereon. 

7. Tree Clearing. Tree clearing on the entire property shall be limited to the minimum 
necessary to accommodate the proposed recreational uses shown on the Master Plan 
and related driveways, entrance improvements, and facilities as determined by the 
Director of Planning or designee and the DRC. 



ATTEST: 

8. Master Stormwater Management Plan. A Master Stormwater Management Plan 
for the Property shall be submitted for review and approval by the County's 
Environmental Division Director prior to final development plan approval for any new 
development on the Property. Redevelopment of the Property shall not be subjected to 
this requirement. 

9. Special Stormwater Criteria. Special Stormwater Criteria (SSC) as adopted by the 
County in the Powhatan and Yarmouth Creek watersheds shall apply to this project. 
Low-impact development principles and techniques shall also be used in all 
development plans to reduce and control impacts associated with any increased storm 
water runoff. The owner shall demonstrate the application of SSC and low-impact 
design on all development plans to the satisfaction and approval of the County's 
Environmental Division Director prior to final development plan approval for any new 
development on the Property. Redevelopment of the Property shall not be subjected to 
this requirement. 

10. Resource Management Area (RMA) Buffers. All development plans shall have the 
RMA buffers delineated in accordance with the Powhatan Creek Watershed 
Management Plan revision dated October 11, 2006, or any such RMA buffers as 
outlined in any future Gordon Creek Watershed Management Plan, to the satisfaction 
and approval of the County's Environmental Division Director prior to final 
development plan approval for any new development on the Property. Redevelopment 
of the Property shall not be subjected to this requirement. 

11. Severance Clause. This SUP is not severable. Invalidation of any word, phrase, 
clause, sentence, or paragraph shall invalidate t e rema· del:.--.. 

~.~ S~anner",··· 

MCGLENNON 
ICENHOUR 
KENNEDY 

AY 
AY 
AYy, 
AYE 

Clerk to the Board 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 10th day of 
November, 2009. 

SUP 0014 09 res - - -



 



 

 



 



Barrett's
Ferry

Governors
Land

Barrett's
Ferry Landing

JCC C-0038-2018
Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

« Chickahominy Riverfront Park

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125

Miles



 

 

 

 



 

 



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.2.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 6/20/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: C­0025­2018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Memorandum Cover Memo
Attachment No. 1 Adopted Master
Plan Exhibit

Attachment No. 2 Proposed Master
Plan Exhibit

Attachment No.3. Location Map Exhibit

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 9:26 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:38 AM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:54 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 6/15/2018 ­ 11:55 AM



 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

DATE: August 20, 2018 

 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

 

FROM: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II 

 

SUBJECT: Case No. C-0025-2018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment 

          

 

The applicant, Mr. Douglas Harbin, has submitted a Conceptual Plan proposing to amend the rezoning 

application for Forest Heights, Neighbors Drive and Richmond Road improvements (Z-0001-2011). The 

original application rezoned 64 parcels within the Forest Heights and Neighbors Drive area, from R-2, 

General Residential, to MU, Mixed Use, with proffers, allowing for property line adjustments to facilitate 

infrastructure improvements and bringing lots into conformance with the current Zoning Ordinance. The 

properties subject to the rezoning are designated as Low-Density Residential and Moderate Residential by 

the 2035 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. 

 

The original Master Plan (Attachment No. 1) shows ± 27-acres of reconfigured land through a combination 

of boundary line adjustments and subdivision to accommodate single-family detached residences. The 

remaining 20 acres, located north of the Forest Heights Road, was proposed as the location of a new 

Salvation Army facility with offices, community meeting space, a gym and other accessory uses and future 

residential uses as well. 

 

The applicant has indicated that the Salvation Army is no longer part of this project and the proposed 

amendment (Attachment No. 2) seeks to add 46 multi-family units (for a total of 107 units) and commercial 

or institution uses within an area of ± 12 acres (the applicant has indicated the possibility of an Assisted 

Living Facility) to the Master Plan area originally slated for uses related to the Salvation Army.  

 

Prior to the public hearing with the full Planning Commission, the applicant has requested that this item be 

placed on the Development Review Committee (DRC) agenda in order to discuss the project and obtain 

input from the DRC members. No action by the DRC is required. 

 

 

 

JR/nb 

CP25-18RezonAmnd-mem 

 

Attachments: 

1. Adopted Master Plan  

2. Proposed Master Plan (1-page layout) 

3. Location Map 

 



These documents were printed from the JCC official Records Manangement Imaging site.



These documents were printed from the JCC official Records Manangement Imaging site.



These documents were printed from the JCC official Records Manangement Imaging site.



These documents were printed from the JCC official Records Manangement Imaging site.



These documents were printed from the JCC official Records Manangement Imaging site.





Neighbors Dr
Forest Heights Rd

Wellesley Blvd

Raintree
Villas

Villages at
Westminster

Old
Stage
Manor

Raintree

J. W.
Moore
Estate

Scott's Pond

JCC C-0025-2018
Forest Heights Master Plan Amendment

« Forest Heights/Neighbors Dr.

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.50.05

Miles

Richmond Rd

Mooretown Rd

Clark
 Ln


	Meeting Agenda
	May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	C-0038-2018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements
	C-0025-2018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

